
 

Columbia Development Authority   

 
Two Marine Drive 

P.O. Box 200 
Boardman, OR 97818 

541-481-3693 
www.columbiadevelopmentauthority.com 

 
 

Agenda 
Tuesday, August 22, 2023 

1pm 
Columbia Development Authority 

Board Meeting 
Port of Morrow – Great Room 

 
Note: Please join us in person or by Zoom 
 
Welcome and Greetings from Chairman Kim Puzey 
Introductions  

CDA Board Members:   
• Chairman, Kim Puzey, Port of Umatilla 
•  Vice Chair, Lisa Mittelsdorf, Port of Morrow    
• John Shafer, Umatilla County 
• Don Sampson, CTUIR 
• Jeff Wenholz, Morrow County 
• Alternate Umatilla County Dan Dorran, Alternate Port of Umatilla Robert Blanc, Alternate Port of 

Morrow Joe Taylor, Alternate CTUIR Kat Brigham, Alternate Morrow County David Sykes   
CDA Staff: Greg Smith, CDA Director, Debbie Pedro, CDA Assistant and Emily Collins Project 
Coordinator 
Guests Introductions and members of the press:  

 
Consent Agenda 

1. Approve CDA Board Meeting Minutes July 25,2023 
2. Approve the CDA- BEO July 2023 Statement Balance $31,787.13 and QuickBooks reports 

Balance Sheet, and P/L ending balance of $31,787.13 
3. Port of Morrow Report on Grant Expenditures through July 2023 

 
Action Items: 

1. Annexation Boardman Fire and Rescue MOU 
2. Annexation Process for Umatilla County Fire District #1 
3. Policy Insurance 
4. Credit Card for Checking Acct 
5. Road Design Contract 
6. PSA CDA and CTUIR  
7. Criteria for Project Proposals 

 
Old Business:  
1. UEC Easements Tracts 7-10 
 



 

Columbia Development Authority   

 
Two Marine Drive 

P.O. Box 200 
Boardman, OR 97818 

541-481-3693 
www.columbiadevelopmentauthority.com 

 

 

New Business 

1. Message from the Chairman 
2. MASTER and STRATEGIC PLAN PROGRESS Director Smith and Engineer of Record Fred Ziari 
3. Economic Development Updates by CDA Members 

 
Other: 
 
Public Comment Period: 
 
Adjourn 
 
Executive Session  

 
Note: If an item is to move to an Executive Session the board chairman will make the recommendation at this 
time. 
An Executive Session will be held to consider information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection, including attorney-
client privileged information or records, and to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the Board to negotiate real property 
transactions. The executive session is being held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) and ORS 192.660(2)(f).  Further pursuant to ORS 
192.660(2)(f), a public body “has the authority to meet in executive session to obtain other professional legal services from its legal 
counsel.” Or. Dept of Justice, Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual 2019: Public Meetings, Voting § (E)(1)(h) 
ORS 192.660 subsection 5 When a governing body convenes an executive session under subsection (2)(h) of this section relating to 
conferring with counsel on current litigation or litigation likely to be filed, the governing body shall bar any member of the news media 
from attending the executive session if the member of the news media is a party to the litigation or is an employee, agent or contractor 
of a news media organization that is a party to the litigation. 
 
Return to Regular Session 
Adjourn  
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84034775464?pwd=aDRaTlVSYXZXdzUrbFhHZDRvazA1Zz09 
 
Meeting ID: 840 3477 5464 
Passcode: 039461 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,84034775464#,,,,*039461# US (Tacoma) 
+13462487799,,84034775464#,,,,*039461# US (Houston) 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
                +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
Meeting ID: 840 3477 5464 
Passcode: 039461 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcbsgcSpW4 

https://www.doj.state.or.us/oregon-department-of-justice/public-records/attorney-generals-public-records-and-meetings-manual/ii-public-meetings/#_Toc11743475


Columbia Development Authority  

Two Marine Drive 
P.O. Box 200 

Boardman, OR 97818 
541-481-3693

www.columbiadevelopmentauthority.com 

Tuesday, July 25, 2023 
2:30pm 

Columbia Development Authority 
MINUTES 

Location: Hermiston City Hall 

Welcome and Greetings from Chairman Kim Puzey 
Introductions  

CDA Board Members: 
• Chairman, Kim Puzey, Port of Umatilla
• Vice Chair, Lisa Mittelsdorf, Port of Morrow
• John Shafer, Umatilla County
• Don Sampson, CTUIR
• Jeff Wenholz, Morrow County
• Alternate Umatilla County Dan Dorran, Alternate Port of Umatilla Robert Blanc,

Alternate Port of Morrow Joe Taylor, Alternate Morrow County David Sykes
CDA Staff: Greg Smith, CDA Director, Debbie Pedro, CDA Assistant and Emily 
Collins, Project Coordinator. 
Guests Introductions and members of the press: Gibb Evens, Dan Hester, Elizabeth 
Howard, Tamra Mabbott, Kelly Doherty, Michele Lanigan, Nate Rivera, Josh Burns, 
Mark Morgan, Ryan DeGrofft, Shannon Souza, Bob Waldher, Brad Baird, Jay Marlow, 
Bill Saparito, JR Cook, Craig Colman,  

Consent Agenda 
1. Approve CDA Board Meeting Minutes June, 2023 A Motion to approve the minutes was

made by Ms. Mittelsdorf to approve the Minutes of June 27th, 2023; second by Mr. Sampson, Motion
Carries.

2. Approve the CDA- BEO June 2023 Statement and QuickBooks, Balance Sheet, and
P/L ending balance of 60,595.24. A Motion to approve the CDA Financials was made by Mr.
Sampson: second by Mr. Shafer, Motion Carries.

3. Port of Morrow Report on Grant Expenditures through June 2023 A Motion to approve
the Grant Expenditures through June 2023 was made by Mr. Wenholz; second by Ms. Mittelsdorf,
Motion Carries.



 

Columbia Development Authority   

 
Two Marine Drive 

P.O. Box 200 
Boardman, OR 97818 

541-481-3693 
www.columbiadevelopmentauthority.com 

 
 
Action Items: 
 

1. MOU Annexation Umatilla County Fire District #1.  The board asked CDA to have legal 
counsel review the document and the agreement is satisfactory. This agreement spells out the services 
that will be provided along with the cost associated with the service. A Motion to approve the MOU 
Annexation between the CDA and Umatilla County Fire District #1, with a modification after taxable 
property or only id property is accessed. Was made by Ms. Mittelsdorf; the second by Mr. Shafer, 
Motion Carries. 
 
• The additional cost for Annexation in Umatilla County tax rate and bond rate will vary.  The 

Morrow Co side will need to be annexed into the county, taxed at the most 12.997 per 1000 
assessed value.  Mr. Taylor expressed that there may be some buildings they may be valuable.  A 
tour with Mr. Taylor of those buildings before the next board meeting. 

• Road Maintenance Discussion on who will own and maintain the roads at the depot? Umatilla 
County public works would possibly maintain the Umatilla Co. side roads. 

 
2. Policies – Conflict of Interest, Financial, Director Involvement, Insurance, Public 

Records, and Procurement Policies are included, we can add more as needed. A Motion 
to approve the CDA Policies was made by Mr. Sampson with the correction and addition of an 
Insurance Policy (Josh Burns and Elizabeth Howard to prepare the policy); second by Mr. Shafer. 
 

3. RFP Update-IRZ received one proposal, the committee is reviewing and scoring.  
 

4. Project Agreements-The discussion of the projects discussed in was asked to be added to the 
master planning, invite the planners from both counties and have a work session. No decision was 
made on the projects. 

  
Cleaver Farms-CDA executed a 4th amendment to the lease-option agreement.  They will purchase 
the property after the PLA is complete. $32,000.00 has been paid towards the agreed upon price of 
$80,000.  This is a joint project with CTUIR. 

 
5. UEC Tracts 1-6 Easements-The easements alignment with our UEC MOA. CDA will record 

this week.  The Easements are in your board packet.  CDA attorney is currently reviewing easements, 
Tracts 7-10 and will be added to your next month CDA board packet. 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENTS: 
Old Business:  
 
Working together to determine costs in the future.  Director Smith Shared that the CDA paid 
Closing Fees, Bank Fees total is $107,696.50 after paying over $25,000 in insurance this month it is leaving the 
CDA with just over $35,000 in our checking account. The annexation 
tax rate and bond rate will cost the CDA in both counties.  



Columbia Development Authority  

Two Marine Drive 
P.O. Box 200 

Boardman, OR 97818 
541-481-3693

www.columbiadevelopmentauthority.com 

Additionally East Gate update and security touchpad may be an option. Security may be 
advised as well.  CDA will need to determine how future expenses, bank loan and future needs will be paid for, 
how will CDA create a revenue flow, as expenses will incur.  There was no discussion. 

New Business: 

1. Lot Line Adjustments and Legal Lots, which were discovered after CDA acquired the land.

2. PSA between CDA and CTUIR-CDA
We have been through two rounds of revisions.  The draft is currently with CTUIR/Dan Hester.

• Discussion to whether CTUIR will cover up to $30,000 of the costs that CDA is incurring in
transactional legal fees, as well as CTUIR and the property line adjustment (“PLA”) in order to
transfer the property to CTUIR.

• Discussion about how many tracts of land does CDA wants to obtain, there are 19 tracts on the
Umatilla Co. side of the property. CDA has proposed to retain 3 tracts within the boundaries of
the 4019-acre CTUIR at the completion of the PLA.

• The remaining tracts will be used to create the Cleaver Farm parcel, the Demil site, the wildlife
area on CDA property (in Umatilla County), and 13 industrial lots within the industrial area on
CDA property in Umatilla County.  CTUIR suggested that they would like to obtain 7.  There
was no decision made.

3. South Oregon Trail Site and the Igloo Explosion Site construction estimate near $750,000.
We will need to construct a parking lot, viewing area that will allow for all 6-7 panels, picnic tables,
boulders around the trail section and parking lot will be ADA approved. The explosion site area will
need to be completely fenced in, per the PA Amendment.

4. Map and Master Planning
• Director Smith shared that his is a high priority. Utilities, Transportation, water injection, roads,

a tremendous amount of work has been done on the master planning.  This will include all the
stakeholders, where we invite the public to share their thoughts.

• IRZ has created a living Map, this will be used from now on as we continue to work on the
master planning this will be updated.  Mr. Sampson and Ms. Mittelsdorf suggested that we get a
master plan in place, potentially bring in someone to facilitate.

5. Economic Development Updates by CDA Members-there were none.

6. Other: Director Smith shared that CDA would be continuing to work of the master planning to share at
the next CDA board meeting.

Director Update 

Public Comment- asked if Craig Coleman was still on the line as well as JR Cook, they were not.  No 
comments were made. 
Adjourn 5:18pm 
Executive Session There was no executive session. 



Columbia Development Authority  

Two Marine Drive 
P.O. Box 200 

Boardman, OR 97818 
541-481-3693

www.columbiadevelopmentauthority.com 

Note: If an item is to move to an Executive Session the board chairman will make the 
recommendation at this time. 
An Executive Session will be held to consider information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection, including attorney-
client privileged information or records, and to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the Board to negotiate real property 
transactions. The executive session is being held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) and ORS 192.660(2)(f).  Further pursuant to ORS 
192.660(2)(f), a public body “has the authority to meet in executive session to obtain other professional legal services from its legal 
counsel.” Or. Dept of Justice, Attorney General’s Public Records and Meetings Manual 2019: Public Meetings, Voting § (E)(1)(h) 
ORS 192.660 subsection 5 When a governing body convenes an executive session under subsection (2)(h) of this section relating to 
conferring with counsel on current litigation or litigation likely to be filed, the governing body shall bar any member of the news media 
from attending the executive session if the member of the news media is a party to the litigation or is an employee, agent or contractor 
of a news media organization that is a party to the litigation. 

Passcode: 039461 

+ Join Zoom Meeting
+https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84034775464?

pwd=aDRaTlVSYXZXdzUrbFhHZDRvazA1Zz09
+Meeting ID: 840 3477 5464
+Passcode: 039461
+One tap mobile
++12532158782,,84034775464#,,,,*039461# US 

(Tacoma)
++13462487799,,84034775464#,,,,*039461# US 

(Houston)
+Dial by your location
+        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+                +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+Meeting ID: 840 3477 5464
+Passcode: 039461
+Find your local number: https://

us02web.zoom.us/u/kcbsgcSpW4
+

https://www.doj.state.or.us/oregon-department-of-justice/public-records/attorney-generals-public-records-and-meetings-manual/ii-public-meetings/#_Toc11743475










BRFD - CDA MOU  
Page 1 

 

Boardman Fire Rescue District 
Fire Protection Services   

Memorandum of Understanding 
 

This Fire Protection Services Memorandum of Understanding (this “Agreement”) is entered into 
as of the ___ day of August, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Boardman Fire Rescue 
District (“BRFD”) and the Columbia Development Authority, an Oregon intergovernmental 
entity, organized and existing as provided by the terms and provisions of an intergovernmental 
agreement entered into pursuant to the provisions of ORS 190.003 to ORS 190.085 and ORS 
190.110 dated May 15, 1995, as amended and restated, between the County of Morrow and the 
County of Umatilla, both political subdivisions of the State of Oregon, the Port of Morrow and 
the Port of Umatilla, both port districts and municipal corporations of the State of Oregon, and 
the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, a federally recognized Indian Tribe 
(“CDA”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. WHEREAS CDA requires temporary fire protection services for its lands and 
improvements thereon from the Effective Date until such time as its lands are annexed 
into the BRFD fire protection area in order to maintain CDA’s property fire insurance 
coverage; 

 
B. WHEREAS the CDA Board of Directors approved at its Board meeting in April 25, 2023 

to request annexation of CDA’s property located in Morrow County into the BRFD fire 
protection area and has sent correspondence to BRFD’s requesting such fire protection 
and emergency services until annexation; 

 
C. WHEREAS BRFD intends to annex CDA into its service district boundaries; 

 
D. WHEREAS ORS 190.010 and ORS 190.030 authorize the parties to enter into such an 

agreement for cooperative performance of any function or activity that a party has the 
authority to perform; and 

 
E. WHEREAS BRFD is willing to provide fire protection services from the Effective Date 

of this Agreement until annexation is complete, at no cost to CDA. 
 

 
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and in consideration of mutual 
covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency are hereby acknowledged, BRFD and CDA hereby agree as follows: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. BRFD Duties and Parameters. 

 
1.1 BRFD will provide all fire protection and rescue services to all real property owned by 

CDA in Morrow County (the “CDA Property”), and improvements thereupon, 
beginning on the Effective Date and while annexation of the CDA Property is being 



BRFD - CDA MOU  
Page 2 

 

completed, recorded and comes into full force (the “Fire Protection Period”). During 
the Fire Protection Period, BRFD will respond to all fires, rescues, and hazardous 
material incidents and provide fire prevention services and paramedic ambulance 
services on and to the CDA Property at no cost to CDA. 
 

1.2 BRFD will further provide fire marshal duties during the Fire Protection Period, which 
duties will include fire cause determination, recommendations, code review and 
enforcement, public education and consultation on CDA’s needs for fire protection at 
no cost to CDA. 
 

1.3 Upon the conclusion of the Fire Protection Period and after annexation comes into full 
force, CDA will be taxed on the assessed value of taxable property located within the 
BRFD.  Further, should there come to be taxable property within the CDA Property and 
the BRFD boundary, no assessment fees will be due from CDA until the 2024 
assessment year. 

 
2. Term and Modification. The term of this Agreement will commence upon the Effective 
Date. Either party may request an evaluation of or changes to this Agreement at any time by 
giving the other party 30 days’ written notice, whereupon the parties will promptly set a meeting 
to resolve any issues and, if necessary, enter an amendment to this Agreement. No amendment, 
change or modification of this Agreement will be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto. 

 
3. Notices. All notices and demands that either party serves upon the other party pursuant to this 
Agreement will be in writing and delivered by personal service, by email followed by mail 
delivery of the original of the notice, by overnight courier with proof of receipt, or by certified 
mail, return receipt requested and addressed as follows: 

 
  Columbia Development Authority  BRFD  
  Attn:  Gregory Smith    Chief Michael Hughes  
  P.O. Box 200     300 Wilson Lane 

 Boardman, OR 97818    Boardman, OR 97818 
  columbiadadirector@gmail.com  mhughes@boardmanfd.com 
 

Service by mail will be deemed complete on the date of actual delivery or 3 business days after 
being sent by certified mail. Service by email will be deemed served upon confirmation of receipt 
of the email, followed by mail delivery. 

 
4. Choice of Law. The laws of the state of Oregon will govern the validity of this Agreement, 
the construction of its terms and the interpretation of the rights and duties of the parties hereto. 
 
5. Arbitration. Any disputes related to this agreement may, if the parties agree, be submitted 
to the award of an Arbitrator of the American Arbitration Association pursuant to the provisions 
of ORS 190.710 to ORS 190.800. 

 
/// /// /// 
 
/// /// /// 



BRFD - CDA MOU  
Page 3 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. The parties hereto agree that facsimile and electronic signatures shall be as effective as 
originals. 
 

 
Boardman Fire Rescue District  
 
 
By:      Date: __________________ 
Lisa Pratt, Board Chair 
Boardman Fire Rescue District  
 
 
 
Columbia Development Authority 
 
 
By: ________________________   Date: ______________________ 
Greg Smith, Executive Director 
Columbia Development Authority 
 
 

 
 
 

 



UCFD1 - CDA MOU Page 1 
 

Umatilla County Fire District #1 
320 S. 1st Street 
Hermiston, OR 97838 
541-567-8822 Bus I 
ucfd1.com 
541-564-6463 Fax I  fire.district@ucfd1.com 

 
 

 
Umatilla County Fire District  #1 
Fire Protection Services  Memorandum 

of Understanding 
 

This Fire Protection Services Memorandum of Understanding (this “Agreement”) is entered into 
as of the ___ day of July, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Umatilla County Fire 
District #1 (“UCFD1”) and Columbia Development Authority, an Oregon intergovernmental 
entity, organized and existing as provided by the terms and provisions of an intergovernmental 
agreement entered into pursuant to the provisions of ORS 190.003 to ORS 190.085 and ORS 
190.110 dated May 15, 1995, as amended and restated, between the County of Morrow and the 
County of Umatilla, both political subdivisions of the State of Oregon, the Port of Morrow and 
the Port of Umatilla, both port districts and municipal corporations of the State of Oregon, and 
the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, a federally recognized Indian Tribe 
(“CDA”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. WHEREAS CDA requires temporary fire protection services for its lands and 
improvements thereon from the Effective Date until such time as its lands are annexed 
into the UCFD1 fire protection area in order to maintain CDA’s property fire insurance 
coverage; 

 
B. WHEREAS the CDA Board of Directors approved at its Board meeting in April 25, 2023 

to request annexation of their properties located in Umatilla County into the UCFD1 fire 
protection area and has sent correspondence to UCFD1’s Board of Directors requesting 
such fire protection and emergency services until annexation; 

 
C. WHEREAS UCFD1 intends to annex CDA into the district within 90 days of the Effective 

Date of this Agreement; 
 

D. WHEREAS ORS 190.010 and ORS 190.030 authorize the parties to enter into such an 
agreement for cooperative performance of any function or activity that a party has the 
authority to perform; and 

 
E. WHEREAS UCFD1 is willing to provide fire protection services for a period of time not 

to exceed more than ninety (90) days from the Effective Date at no cost to CDA. 
 

mailto:fire.district@ucfd1.com


UCFD1 - CDA MOU Page 2 
 

 
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and in consideration of mutual 
covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency are hereby acknowledged, UCFDl and CDA hereby agree as follows: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. UCFD1 Duties and Parameters. 

 
1.1 UCFD1 will provide all fire protection and rescue services to all real property owned by 

CDA in Umatilla County (the “CDA Property”), and improvements thereupon, 
beginning on the Effective Date and while annexation of the CDA Property is being 
completed, recorded and comes into full force (the “Fire Protection Period”). During 
the Fire Protection Period, UCFD1 will respond to all fires, rescues, and hazardous 
material incidents on the CDA Property at no cost to CDA. 
 

1.2 UCFD1 will further provide fire marshal duties during the Fire Protection Period, which 
duties will include fire cause determination, recommendations, code review and 
enforcement, public education and consultation on CDA’s needs for fire protection at 
no cost to CDA. 
 

1.3 Upon the conclusion of the Fire Protection Period and after annexation comes into full 
force, CDA will be taxed on the assessed value of taxable property located within the 
UCFD1.  Further, should there come to be taxable property within the CDA Property 
and the UCFD1 boundary, no assessment fees will be due from CDA until the 2024 
assessment year. 

 
2. Fire Station Land Transfer.  CDA will transfer to UCFD1 two acres of land without cost to 
UCFD1, with the location of such acres to be selected by CDA, for a future fire station. 

 
3. Term and Modification. The term of this Agreement will commence upon the Effective 
Date. Either party may request an evaluation of or changes to this Agreement at any time by 
giving the other party 30 days’ written notice, whereupon the parties will promptly set a meeting 
to resolve any issues and, if necessary, enter an amendment to this Agreement. No amendment, 
change or modification of this Agreement will be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties 
hereto. 

 
4. Notices. All notices and demands that either party serves upon the other party pursuant to this 
Agreement will be in writing and delivered by personal service, by email followed by mail 
delivery of the original of the notice, by overnight courier with proof of receipt, or by certified 
mail, return receipt requested and addressed as follows: 

 
  Columbia Development Authority  UCFD1: 
  Attn:  Gregory Smith    Ric Sherman, Board President  
  P.O. Box 200     320 S 1st Street 

 Boardman, OR 97818    Hermiston, OR 9783 
  columbiadadirector@gmail.com 
 



UCFD1 - CDA MOU Page 3 
 

Service by mail will be deemed complete on the date of actual delivery or 3 business days after 
being sent by certified mail. Service by email will be deemed served upon confirmation of receipt 
of the email, followed by mail delivery. 

 
5. Choice of Law. The laws of the state of Oregon will govern the validity of this Agreement, 
the construction of its terms and the interpretation of the rights and duties of the parties hereto. 
 
6. Arbitration. Any disputes related to this agreement may, if the parties agree, be submitted 
to the award of an Arbitrator of the American Arbitration Association pursuant to the provisions 
of ORS 190.710 to ORS 190.800. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. The parties hereto agree that facsimile and electronic signatures shall be as effective as 
originals. 
 

 
Umatilla County Fire District # 1 
 
 
By:      Date: __________________ 
Ric Sherman, Board President 
Umatilla County Fire District# 1  
 
Columbia Development Authority 
 
 

By:     Date: 7-31-2023                     
Greg Smith, Executive Director 
Columbia Development Authority 
 
 

 
 
 

 





 

INSURANCE POLICY 
Adopted  

 
The CDA shall maintain commercial general liability insurance that evidences coverage in the 
amount of at least $5mm per occurrence and $25mm in the aggregate against any loss, damage 
or injury.  
  
The CDA shall maintain commercial automobile liability insurance covering owned, hired and 
non-owned vehicles, which insurance shall evidence coverage with combined single limits of at 
least $2mm. 
  
The CDA shall require its tenants and contractors to i) carry level of liability insurance 
evidencing coverage appropriate for the value of the leased property and fixtures thereon or 
reflecting the work to be performed, respectively;  ii) carry insurance that names CDA as an 
additional insured; and iii) ensure that their insurer will waive the right of subrogation against 
CDA’s insurers. 
  
The CDA shall require that professional engineers under contract with CDA will have insurance 
that evidences the following coverage: 
                i) general liability insurance with a per occurrence limit of $2 mm and aggregate of 
$5mm; or, if lower limits, an umbrella policy of $5mm. 
                ii) professional coverage with $3mm per claim and an aggregate of $5 mm; or, if lower 
limits, an umbrella policy of $5mm. 
                iii) commercial automobile liability insurance covering owned, hired and non-owned 
vehicles, with combined single limits of at least $2mm; or, if lower limits, an umbrella policy of 
$5mm. 
  
The CDA shall require that all professional engineers name CDA as an additional insured and 
wave any right of subrogation. 
  
The CDA shall require that all policies of insurance contain endorsements that the insurer(s) 
shall give CDA at least 30 days advance written notice of any cancellation, termination, material 
change or lapse of insurance. 
  
The CDA shall require that all tenants, contractors, and engineers maintain Workers’ 
Compensation, disability benefits or similar insurance as required by the laws of the State of 
Oregon. 
 



UEC EASEMENT #4543 
WO# 2102044 

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 

UEC REFERENCE:  CDA Tract 7 

UTILITY EASEMENT 

Columbia Development Authority, an Oregon intergovernmental entity organized and existing as provided by the terms and provisions 
of an intergovernmental agreement dated May 15, 1995, as amended, between the County of Morrow and the County of Umatilla, both 
political subdivisions of the State of Oregon, the Port of Morrow and the Port of Umatilla, both port districts and municipal corporations 
of the State of Oregon, and the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, a federally recognized Indian tribe (“Grantor”), 
for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, grants to Umatilla Electric Cooperative Association, 
an Oregon cooperative, (“Grantee”), and to its licensees, successors or assigns, a perpetual, non-exclusive easement for the sole purpose 
of constructing, operating and maintaining electrical power systems and facilities, together with supporting communication facilities 
(collectively, “Electric Facilities”), on, across, over, or under a portion of the property described in Exhibit A (“Property”), which portion 
is described and depicted in Exhibit B (“Easement Area”). 

Scope of Easement.  Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement include the right to inspect and make repairs, changes, alterations, 
improvements, removals from, substitutions and additions to the Electric Facilities as Grantee may from time to time deem necessary in 
its commercially reasonable discretion, including, by way of example and not by way of limitation, the right to increase or decrease the 
number of conduits, wires, cables, handholes, manholes, connection boxes, transformers, and transformer enclosures. Grantee shall also 
have the right to cut, trim and remove shrubbery, brush, and vegetation located within the Easement Area and to clear and keep cleared 
any trees or other obstructions located on the Easement Area which pose a hazard to the operation of the Electric Facilities within the 
Easement Area.  All rights of Grantee hereunder shall be exercised at Grantee’s sole cost and expense and in exercising such rights 
Grantee will (i) minimize interference with the access to, operation, occupation and use of the Property by Grantor or other users, (ii) 
keep the Property free and clear of all liens, charges, and other monetary encumbrances arising out of any use of the Property by Grantee 
or Grantee’s Permittees, (iii) promptly repair, at Grantee’s sole expense, any damage to the Property or improvements thereon, resulting 
from use of the Property by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees, (iv) restore and seed any and all areas within the Property which are 
disturbed by Grantee’s, or Grantee’s Permittees, use of the Property with native plants as recommended by Confederated Tribes of the 
Umatilla Indian Reservation, and (v) cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantor and other users of the Easement Area in 
determining the location of Electrical Facilities. 

Improvements.  Grantor agrees that any portion of the Electric Facilities installed in, upon or under the above-described lands at 
Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the option of Grantee.  

Grantor’s Use.  Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Area for all purposes, provided that such use complies with applicable 
safety regulations and does not unreasonably interfere with the Electric Facilities or Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement. Grantor 
will cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantee prior to constructing any structures within the Easement Area to ensure that 
such structures will not result in non-compliance with applicable safety regulations. 

Grantor Representations and Warranties.  Grantor covenants that it is the sole owner of the Easement Area, that it is authorized to 
convey this Easement, and that, as of the date of this Utility Easement, the Property is free and clear of encumbrances and liens of 
whatsoever character except those matters of record as would be disclosed by an examination of the Official Records of Umatilla 
County, Oregon (the “Official Records”) as of the effective date, that are otherwise disclosed in writing to Grantee on or prior to the 
effective date, or those matters which are not likely to have a material impact on Grantee’s use of the Easement Area.   

Compliance with Laws.  Grantee shall construct and maintain the Electrical Facilities in accordance with and shall at all times comply 
with all federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, laws, regulations, orders, requirements, and standards in effect or which arise 
through promulgation, enactment, amendment, or otherwise, including those pertaining to endangered or threatened species, human 
health, environmental conditions or hazardous substances. 



UEC EASEMENT #4543 
WO# 2102044 

Liability. Grantor and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to as “Grantor’s 
Permittees”), shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused by Grantor or 
Grantor’s Permittees. Grantee and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to 
as “Grantee’s Permittees”) shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused 
by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees. To the extent permitted by law, including the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, 
each party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers, agents, lenders, tenants, and employees 
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, complaints, suits, losses, damages, injuries, and liabilities 
(including those for costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees) to any person, persons, or property arising out of  the use of the Easement Area 
by the Indemnifying Party or the Indemnifying Party’s agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, or licensees.  

Hazardous Materials. Grantee shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit the use, storage, generation, escape, disposal 
or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Property in any manner not sanctioned by law.  In all events, Grantee shall indemnify and 
hold Grantor harmless for, from and against any and all claims, damages, fines, judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities or losses 
(including, without limitation, any and all sums paid for settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, and consultants’ and experts’ fees) arising 
from the presence or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Easement Area or the Property arising out of the activity or omission of 
Grantee or persons acting under Grantee. The term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any chemical, compound, constituent, material, 
waste, contaminant or other substance (including petroleum and petroleum derived substances or wastes) as defined in or regulated by 
any federal, state and local laws, or other regulations, relating to the protection of the environment, natural resources, pollution control, 
hazardous materials or human health. 

Exceptions.  The grant of this Utility Easement is made subject to all exceptions to title on file or of record in the Official Records as 
of the date of this Utility Easement. 

Abandonment.  If Grantee abandons the Easement Area, and it remains abandoned for a period in excess of twenty-four (24) months, 
Grantor may, after providing 30 days’ notice to Grantee, terminate this Easement by providing written notice of termination to Grantee 
and recording a termination of easement, which termination of easement shall not require Grantee’s consent or signature.  Upon 
termination of this Easement, Grantee shall, within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of such termination, remove the 
Electrical Facilities and restore the Easement Area to its original condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

Governing Law.  This Easement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon (without regard 
to the principles thereof relating to conflicts of laws). 

Counterparts.  This Easement may be executed in as many counterparts as may be deemed necessary or convenient, each of which, 
when so executed, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

No Dedication. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of all or any portion of the Easement Area to the 
general public, for the general public or for any public use or purpose whatsoever, it being the intention and understanding of Grantor 
and Grantee that this instrument shall be strictly construed and limited to and for the purposes herein expressed. 

[Signatures and notarial acknowledgements appear on the following pages] 



- Signature Page -
Utility Easement

Grantor and Grantee have executed this Easement effective as of the ________ day of ___________________, 2023. 

GRANTOR: 

THE COLUMBIA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 
an intergovernmental entity organized under the laws of 
the State of Oregon 

By: ____________________ 
Name: Greg Smith  
Its: Executive Director 

STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 

THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Greg Smith as Executive Director of the Columbia Development Authority, 
known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he executed the same. 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 



- Signature Page -
Utility Easement

GRANTEE:  

UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION,  
an Oregon cooperative  

By: ____________________ 
Name: Robert Echenrode 
Its: General Manager/CEO 

STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 

THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Robert Echenrode as General Manager/CEO of Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
Association, known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 



EXHIBIT A: PROPERTY 

The real property described in Instrument No. 2023-01355 record in Umatilla County on  
March 3, 2023, in the Office of County Records, Umatilla County, Oregon.   



Exhibit B to Utility Easement:  Page 1 of 2

ckraegenbrink
Text Box
EXHIBIT B:  EASEMENT AREA



Ex
hi
bi
t B

 to
 U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t: 
 P

ag
e 

2 
of

 2



UEC EASEMENT #4544 
WO# 2102044 

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 
 
UEC REFERENCE:  CDA Tract 8    
 
 
 
 

UTILITY EASEMENT 
 
Columbia Development Authority, an Oregon intergovernmental entity organized and existing as provided by the terms and provisions 
of an intergovernmental agreement dated May 15, 1995, as amended, between the County of Morrow and the County of Umatilla, both 
political subdivisions of the State of Oregon, the Port of Morrow and the Port of Umatilla, both port districts and municipal corporations 
of the State of Oregon, and the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, a federally recognized Indian tribe (“Grantor”), 
for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, grants to Umatilla Electric Cooperative Association, 
an Oregon cooperative, (“Grantee”), and to its licensees, successors or assigns, a perpetual, non-exclusive easement for the sole purpose 
of constructing, operating and maintaining electrical power systems and facilities, together with supporting communication facilities 
(collectively, “Electric Facilities”), on, across, over, or under a portion of the property described in Exhibit A (“Property”), which portion 
is described and depicted in Exhibit B (“Easement Area”). 

 
Scope of Easement.  Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement include the right to inspect and make repairs, changes, alterations, 
improvements, removals from, substitutions and additions to the Electric Facilities as Grantee may from time to time deem necessary in 
its commercially reasonable discretion, including, by way of example and not by way of limitation, the right to increase or decrease the 
number of conduits, wires, cables, handholes, manholes, connection boxes, transformers, and transformer enclosures. Grantee shall also 
have the right to cut, trim and remove shrubbery, brush, and vegetation located within the Easement Area and to clear and keep cleared 
any trees or other obstructions located on the Easement Area which pose a hazard to the operation of the Electric Facilities within the 
Easement Area.  All rights of Grantee hereunder shall be exercised at Grantee’s sole cost and expense and in exercising such rights 
Grantee will (i) minimize interference with the access to, operation, occupation and use of the Property by Grantor or other users, (ii) 
keep the Property free and clear of all liens, charges, and other monetary encumbrances arising out of any use of the Property by Grantee 
or Grantee’s Permittees, (iii) promptly repair, at Grantee’s sole expense, any damage to the Property or improvements thereon, resulting 
from use of the Property by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees, (iv) restore and seed any and all areas within the Property which are 
disturbed by Grantee’s, or Grantee’s Permittees, use of the Property with native plants as recommended by Confederated Tribes of the 
Umatilla Indian Reservation, and (v) cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantor and other users of the Easement Area in 
determining the location of Electrical Facilities. 
 
Improvements.  Grantor agrees that any portion of the Electric Facilities installed in, upon or under the above-described lands at 
Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the option of Grantee.  

 
Grantor’s Use.  Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Area for all purposes, provided that such use complies with applicable 
safety regulations and does not unreasonably interfere with the Electric Facilities or Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement. Grantor 
will cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantee prior to constructing any structures within the Easement Area to ensure that 
such structures will not result in non-compliance with applicable safety regulations. 

 
Grantor Representations and Warranties.  Grantor covenants that it is the sole owner of the Easement Area, that it is authorized to 
convey this Easement, and that, as of the date of this Utility Easement, the Property is free and clear of encumbrances and liens of 
whatsoever character except those matters of record as would be disclosed by an examination of the Official Records of Morrow County, 
Oregon (the “Official Records”) as of the effective date, that are otherwise disclosed in writing to Grantee on or prior to the effective 
date, or those matters which are not likely to have a material impact on Grantee’s use of the Easement Area.   
 
Compliance with Laws.  Grantee shall construct and maintain the Electrical Facilities in accordance with and shall at all times comply 
with all federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, laws, regulations, orders, requirements, and standards in effect or which arise 
through promulgation, enactment, amendment, or otherwise, including those pertaining to endangered or threatened species, human 
health, environmental conditions or hazardous substances. 



UEC EASEMENT #4544 
WO# 2102044 

 
Liability. Grantor and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to as “Grantor’s 
Permittees”), shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused by Grantor or 
Grantor’s Permittees. Grantee and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to 
as “Grantee’s Permittees”) shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused 
by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees. To the extent permitted by law, including the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, 
each party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers, agents, lenders, tenants, and employees 
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, complaints, suits, losses, damages, injuries, and liabilities 
(including those for costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees) to any person, persons, or property arising out of  the use of the Easement Area 
by the Indemnifying Party or the Indemnifying Party’s agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, or licensees.  

Hazardous Materials. Grantee shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit the use, storage, generation, escape, disposal 
or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Property in any manner not sanctioned by law.  In all events, Grantee shall indemnify and 
hold Grantor harmless for, from and against any and all claims, damages, fines, judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities or losses 
(including, without limitation, any and all sums paid for settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, and consultants’ and experts’ fees) arising 
from the presence or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Easement Area or the Property arising out of the activity or omission of 
Grantee or persons acting under Grantee. The term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any chemical, compound, constituent, material, 
waste, contaminant or other substance (including petroleum and petroleum derived substances or wastes) as defined in or regulated by 
any federal, state and local laws, or other regulations, relating to the protection of the environment, natural resources, pollution control, 
hazardous materials or human health. 

Exceptions.  The grant of this Utility Easement is made subject to all exceptions to title on file or of record in the Official Records as 
of the date of this Utility Easement. 

Abandonment.  If Grantee abandons the Easement Area, and it remains abandoned for a period in excess of twenty-four (24) months, 
Grantor may, after providing 30 days’ notice to Grantee, terminate this Easement by providing written notice of termination to Grantee 
and recording a termination of easement, which termination of easement shall not require Grantee’s consent or signature.  Upon 
termination of this Easement, Grantee shall, within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of such termination, remove the 
Electrical Facilities and restore the Easement Area to its original condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

Governing Law.  This Easement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon (without regard 
to the principles thereof relating to conflicts of laws). 

Counterparts.  This Easement may be executed in as many counterparts as may be deemed necessary or convenient, each of which, 
when so executed, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

No Dedication. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of all or any portion of the Easement Area to the 
general public, for the general public or for any public use or purpose whatsoever, it being the intention and understanding of Grantor 
and Grantee that this instrument shall be strictly construed and limited to and for the purposes herein expressed. 

 
[Signatures and notarial acknowledgements appear on the following pages] 



- Signature Page - 
Utility Easement 

 

Grantor and Grantee have executed this Easement effective as of the ________ day of ___________________, 2023. 

 

GRANTOR: 

 
THE COLUMBIA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 
an intergovernmental entity organized under the laws of 
the State of Oregon 

 
By: ____________________ 
Name: Greg Smith  
Its: Executive Director 

 

         
 

        
    

STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 
 
 
  
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Greg Smith as Executive Director of the Columbia Development Authority, 
known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he executed the same. 
 
 
 
             
        ____________________________________ 

Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 
 



- Signature Page - 
Utility Easement 

GRANTEE:  
 
 
UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION,  
an Oregon cooperative  

 
By: ____________________ 
Name: Robert Echenrode 
Its: General Manager/CEO 

 
 
STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 
 
 
  
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Robert Echenrode as General Manager/CEO of Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
Association, known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 
 
 
 
             
        ____________________________________ 

Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A: PROPERTY 
 

The real property described in Instrument No. 2023-52668 record in Morrow County on  
March 3, 2023, in the Office of County Records, Morrow County, Oregon.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT B:  EASEMENT AREA

ckraegenbrink
Text Box
Exhibit B to Utility Easement:  Page 1 of 2



ckraegenbrink
Text Box
Exhibit B for Utility Easement:  Page 2 of 2



UEC EASEMENT #4545 
WO# 2102044 

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 
 
UEC REFERENCE:  CDA Tract 9   
 
 
 
 

UTILITY EASEMENT 
 
Columbia Development Authority, an Oregon intergovernmental entity organized and existing as provided by the terms and provisions 
of an intergovernmental agreement dated May 15, 1995, as amended, between the County of Morrow and the County of Umatilla, both 
political subdivisions of the State of Oregon, the Port of Morrow and the Port of Umatilla, both port districts and municipal corporations 
of the State of Oregon, and the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, a federally recognized Indian tribe (“Grantor”), 
for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, grants to Umatilla Electric Cooperative Association, 
an Oregon cooperative, (“Grantee”), and to its licensees, successors or assigns, a perpetual, non-exclusive easement for the sole purpose 
of constructing, operating and maintaining electrical power systems and facilities, together with supporting communication facilities 
(collectively, “Electric Facilities”), on, across, over, or under a portion of the property described in Exhibit A (“Property”), which portion 
is described and depicted in Exhibit B (“Easement Area”). 

 
Scope of Easement.  Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement include the right to inspect and make repairs, changes, alterations, 
improvements, removals from, substitutions and additions to the Electric Facilities as Grantee may from time to time deem necessary in 
its commercially reasonable discretion, including, by way of example and not by way of limitation, the right to increase or decrease the 
number of conduits, wires, cables, handholes, manholes, connection boxes, transformers, and transformer enclosures. Grantee shall also 
have the right to cut, trim and remove shrubbery, brush, and vegetation located within the Easement Area and to clear and keep cleared 
any trees or other obstructions located on the Easement Area which pose a hazard to the operation of the Electric Facilities within the 
Easement Area.  All rights of Grantee hereunder shall be exercised at Grantee’s sole cost and expense and in exercising such rights 
Grantee will (i) minimize interference with the access to, operation, occupation and use of the Property by Grantor or other users, (ii) 
keep the Property free and clear of all liens, charges, and other monetary encumbrances arising out of any use of the Property by Grantee 
or Grantee’s Permittees, (iii) promptly repair, at Grantee’s sole expense, any damage to the Property or improvements thereon, resulting 
from use of the Property by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees, (iv) restore and seed any and all areas within the Property which are 
disturbed by Grantee’s, or Grantee’s Permittees, use of the Property with native plants as recommended by Confederated Tribes of the 
Umatilla Indian Reservation, and (v) cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantor and other users of the Easement Area in 
determining the location of Electrical Facilities. 
 
Improvements.  Grantor agrees that any portion of the Electric Facilities installed in, upon or under the above-described lands at 
Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the option of Grantee.  

 
Grantor’s Use.  Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Area for all purposes, provided that such use complies with applicable 
safety regulations and does not unreasonably interfere with the Electric Facilities or Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement. Grantor 
will cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantee prior to constructing any structures within the Easement Area to ensure that 
such structures will not result in non-compliance with applicable safety regulations. 

 
Grantor Representations and Warranties.  Grantor covenants that it is the sole owner of the Easement Area, that it is authorized to 
convey this Easement, and that, as of the date of this Utility Easement, the Property is free and clear of encumbrances and liens of 
whatsoever character except those matters of record as would be disclosed by an examination of the Official Records of Morrow County, 
Oregon (the “Official Records”) as of the effective date, that are otherwise disclosed in writing to Grantee on or prior to the effective 
date, or those matters which are not likely to have a material impact on Grantee’s use of the Easement Area.   
 
Compliance with Laws.  Grantee shall construct and maintain the Electrical Facilities in accordance with and shall at all times comply 
with all federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, laws, regulations, orders, requirements, and standards in effect or which arise 
through promulgation, enactment, amendment, or otherwise, including those pertaining to endangered or threatened species, human 
health, environmental conditions or hazardous substances. 



UEC EASEMENT #4545 
WO# 2102044 

 
Liability. Grantor and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to as “Grantor’s 
Permittees”), shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused by Grantor or 
Grantor’s Permittees. Grantee and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to 
as “Grantee’s Permittees”) shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused 
by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees. To the extent permitted by law, including the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, 
each party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers, agents, lenders, tenants, and employees 
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, complaints, suits, losses, damages, injuries, and liabilities 
(including those for costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees) to any person, persons, or property arising out of  the use of the Easement Area 
by the Indemnifying Party or the Indemnifying Party’s agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, or licensees.  

Hazardous Materials. Grantee shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit the use, storage, generation, escape, disposal 
or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Property in any manner not sanctioned by law.  In all events, Grantee shall indemnify and 
hold Grantor harmless for, from and against any and all claims, damages, fines, judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities or losses 
(including, without limitation, any and all sums paid for settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, and consultants’ and experts’ fees) arising 
from the presence or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Easement Area or the Property arising out of the activity or omission of 
Grantee or persons acting under Grantee. The term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any chemical, compound, constituent, material, 
waste, contaminant or other substance (including petroleum and petroleum derived substances or wastes) as defined in or regulated by 
any federal, state and local laws, or other regulations, relating to the protection of the environment, natural resources, pollution control, 
hazardous materials or human health. 

Exceptions.  The grant of this Utility Easement is made subject to all exceptions to title on file or of record in the Official Records as 
of the date of this Utility Easement. 

Abandonment.  If Grantee abandons the Easement Area, and it remains abandoned for a period in excess of twenty-four (24) months, 
Grantor may, after providing 30 days’ notice to Grantee, terminate this Easement by providing written notice of termination to Grantee 
and recording a termination of easement, which termination of easement shall not require Grantee’s consent or signature.  Upon 
termination of this Easement, Grantee shall, within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of such termination, remove the 
Electrical Facilities and restore the Easement Area to its original condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

Governing Law.  This Easement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon (without regard 
to the principles thereof relating to conflicts of laws). 

Counterparts.  This Easement may be executed in as many counterparts as may be deemed necessary or convenient, each of which, 
when so executed, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

No Dedication. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of all or any portion of the Easement Area to the 
general public, for the general public or for any public use or purpose whatsoever, it being the intention and understanding of Grantor 
and Grantee that this instrument shall be strictly construed and limited to and for the purposes herein expressed. 

 
[Signatures and notarial acknowledgements appear on the following pages] 



- Signature Page - 
Utility Easement 

 

Grantor and Grantee have executed this Easement effective as of the ________ day of ___________________, 2023. 

 

GRANTOR: 

 
THE COLUMBIA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 
an intergovernmental entity organized under the laws of 
the State of Oregon 

 
By: ____________________ 
Name: Greg Smith  
Its: Executive Director 

 

         
 

        
    

STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 
 
 
  
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Greg Smith as Executive Director of the Columbia Development Authority, 
known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he executed the same. 
 
 
 
             
        ____________________________________ 

Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 
 



- Signature Page - 
Utility Easement 

GRANTEE:  
 
 
UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION,  
an Oregon cooperative  

 
By: ____________________ 
Name: Robert Echenrode 
Its: General Manager/CEO 

 
 
STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 
 
 
  
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Robert Echenrode as General Manager/CEO of Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
Association, known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 
 
 
 
             
        ____________________________________ 

Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A: PROPERTY 
 

The real property described in Instrument No. 2023-52668 record in Morrow County on  
March 3, 2023, in the Office of County Records, Morrow County, Oregon.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT B:  EASEMENT AREA

Exhibit B to Utility Easement:  Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B to Utility Easement:  Page 2 of 2



UEC EASEMENT #4551 
WO# 2102044 

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 
 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 
 
UEC REFERENCE:  CDA Tract 10   
 
 
 
 

UTILITY EASEMENT 
 
Columbia Development Authority, an Oregon intergovernmental entity organized and existing as provided by the terms and provisions 
of an intergovernmental agreement dated May 15, 1995, as amended, between the County of Morrow and the County of Umatilla, both 
political subdivisions of the State of Oregon, the Port of Morrow and the Port of Umatilla, both port districts and municipal corporations 
of the State of Oregon, and the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, a federally recognized Indian tribe (“Grantor”), 
for good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, grants to Umatilla Electric Cooperative Association, 
an Oregon cooperative, (“Grantee”), and to its licensees, successors or assigns, a perpetual, non-exclusive easement for the sole purpose 
of constructing, operating and maintaining electrical power systems and facilities, together with supporting communication facilities 
(collectively, “Electric Facilities”), on, across, over, or under a portion of the property described in Exhibit A (“Property”), which portion 
is described and depicted in Exhibit B (“Easement Area”). 

 
Scope of Easement.  Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement include the right to inspect and make repairs, changes, alterations, 
improvements, removals from, substitutions and additions to the Electric Facilities as Grantee may from time to time deem necessary in 
its commercially reasonable discretion, including, by way of example and not by way of limitation, the right to increase or decrease the 
number of conduits, wires, cables, handholes, manholes, connection boxes, transformers, and transformer enclosures. Grantee shall also 
have the right to cut, trim and remove shrubbery, brush, and vegetation located within the Easement Area and to clear and keep cleared 
any trees or other obstructions located on the Easement Area which pose a hazard to the operation of the Electric Facilities within the 
Easement Area.  All rights of Grantee hereunder shall be exercised at Grantee’s sole cost and expense and in exercising such rights 
Grantee will (i) minimize interference with the access to, operation, occupation and use of the Property by Grantor or other users, (ii) 
keep the Property free and clear of all liens, charges, and other monetary encumbrances arising out of any use of the Property by Grantee 
or Grantee’s Permittees, (iii) promptly repair, at Grantee’s sole expense, any damage to the Property or improvements thereon, resulting 
from use of the Property by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees, (iv) restore and seed any and all areas within the Property which are 
disturbed by Grantee’s, or Grantee’s Permittees, use of the Property with native plants as recommended by Confederated Tribes of the 
Umatilla Indian Reservation, and (v) cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantor and other users of the Easement Area in 
determining the location of Electrical Facilities. 
 
Improvements.  Grantor agrees that any portion of the Electric Facilities installed in, upon or under the above-described lands at 
Grantee’s expense shall remain the property of Grantee, removable at the option of Grantee.  

 
Grantor’s Use.  Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Area for all purposes, provided that such use complies with applicable 
safety regulations and does not unreasonably interfere with the Electric Facilities or Grantee’s rights under this Utility Easement. Grantor 
will cooperate and coordinate in good faith with Grantee prior to constructing any structures within the Easement Area to ensure that 
such structures will not result in non-compliance with applicable safety regulations. 

 
Grantor Representations and Warranties.  Grantor covenants that it is the sole owner of the Easement Area, that it is authorized to 
convey this Easement, and that, as of the date of this Utility Easement, the Property is free and clear of encumbrances and liens of 
whatsoever character except those matters of record as would be disclosed by an examination of the Official Records of Morrow County, 
Oregon (the “Official Records”) as of the effective date, that are otherwise disclosed in writing to Grantee on or prior to the effective 
date, or those matters which are not likely to have a material impact on Grantee’s use of the Easement Area.   
 
Compliance with Laws.  Grantee shall construct and maintain the Electrical Facilities in accordance with and shall at all times comply 
with all federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules, laws, regulations, orders, requirements, and standards in effect or which arise 
through promulgation, enactment, amendment, or otherwise, including those pertaining to endangered or threatened species, human 
health, environmental conditions or hazardous substances. 



UEC EASEMENT #4551 
WO# 2102044 

 
Liability. Grantor and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to as “Grantor’s 
Permittees”), shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused by Grantor or 
Grantor’s Permittees. Grantee and its agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, and licensees (all of the foregoing being referred to 
as “Grantee’s Permittees”) shall be responsible for any and all damage to the Electrical Facilities and the Property to the extent caused 
by Grantee or Grantee’s Permittees. To the extent permitted by law, including the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, 
each party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers, agents, lenders, tenants, and employees 
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, complaints, suits, losses, damages, injuries, and liabilities 
(including those for costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees) to any person, persons, or property arising out of  the use of the Easement Area 
by the Indemnifying Party or the Indemnifying Party’s agents, contractors, subcontractors, invitees, or licensees.  

Hazardous Materials. Grantee shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit the use, storage, generation, escape, disposal 
or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Property in any manner not sanctioned by law.  In all events, Grantee shall indemnify and 
hold Grantor harmless for, from and against any and all claims, damages, fines, judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities or losses 
(including, without limitation, any and all sums paid for settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, and consultants’ and experts’ fees) arising 
from the presence or release of any Hazardous Materials on the Easement Area or the Property arising out of the activity or omission of 
Grantee or persons acting under Grantee. The term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any chemical, compound, constituent, material, 
waste, contaminant or other substance (including petroleum and petroleum derived substances or wastes) as defined in or regulated by 
any federal, state and local laws, or other regulations, relating to the protection of the environment, natural resources, pollution control, 
hazardous materials or human health. 

Exceptions.  The grant of this Utility Easement is made subject to all exceptions to title on file or of record in the Official Records as 
of the date of this Utility Easement. 

Abandonment.  If Grantee abandons the Easement Area, and it remains abandoned for a period in excess of twenty-four (24) months, 
Grantor may, after providing 30 days’ notice to Grantee, terminate this Easement by providing written notice of termination to Grantee 
and recording a termination of easement, which termination of easement shall not require Grantee’s consent or signature.  Upon 
termination of this Easement, Grantee shall, within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of such termination, remove the 
Electrical Facilities and restore the Easement Area to its original condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

Governing Law.  This Easement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon (without regard 
to the principles thereof relating to conflicts of laws). 

Counterparts.  This Easement may be executed in as many counterparts as may be deemed necessary or convenient, each of which, 
when so executed, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

No Dedication. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of all or any portion of the Easement Area to the 
general public, for the general public or for any public use or purpose whatsoever, it being the intention and understanding of Grantor 
and Grantee that this instrument shall be strictly construed and limited to and for the purposes herein expressed. 

 
[Signatures and notarial acknowledgements appear on the following pages] 



- Signature Page - 
Utility Easement 

 

Grantor and Grantee have executed this Easement effective as of the ________ day of ___________________, 2023. 

 

GRANTOR: 

 
THE COLUMBIA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 
an intergovernmental entity organized under the laws of 
the State of Oregon 

 
By: ____________________ 
Name: Greg Smith  
Its: Executive Director 

 

         
 

        
    

STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 
 
 
  
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Greg Smith as Executive Director of the Columbia Development Authority, 
known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
to me that he executed the same. 
 
 
 
             
        ____________________________________ 

Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 
 



- Signature Page - 
Utility Easement 

GRANTEE:  
 
 
UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION,  
an Oregon cooperative  

 
By: ____________________ 
Name: Robert Echenrode 
Its: General Manager/CEO 

 
 
STATE OF ___________________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ____________________ ) 
 
 
  
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________day of ________________________, 2023, before me the undersigned 
personally appeared the above named Robert Echenrode as General Manager/CEO of Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
Association, known to me to be the identical person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 
 
 
 
             
        ____________________________________ 

Notary Public for _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ______________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A: PROPERTY 
 

The real property described in Instrument No. 2023-52668 record in Morrow County on  
March 3, 2023, in the Office of County Records, Morrow County, Oregon.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT B:  EASEMENT AREA

Exhibit B to Utility Easement:  Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B to Utility Easement:  Page 2 of 2




	CDA Board Agenda August 22, 2023
	Minutes July 25, 2023
	QuickBooks July 2023
	MOU Boardman Fire - 08.01.2023 - draft for review
	1. BRFD Duties and Parameters.
	Boardman Fire Rescue District

	MOU Umatilla Fire Dist #1 - Signed by Greg Smith
	1. UCFD1 Duties and Parameters.
	Umatilla County Fire District # 1

	Insurance Policy-Draft
	INSURANCE POLICY

	Tract 7 Easement Full
	Tract 8 Easement_UEC4544_WO2102044_CDA_CK Tract 8 Full
	Easement_UEC4544_WO2102044_CDA_CK Tract 8
	8.pdf

	Tract 9 Easement_UEC4545_WO2102044_CDA_CK Tract 9  Full
	Easement_UEC4545_WO2102044_CDA_CK Tract 9
	98-01 CDA UEC Easements Tract 9.pdf

	Tract 10 Easement_UEC4551_WO2102044_CDA_CK Tract 10  Full
	Easement_UEC4551_WO2102044_CDA_CK Tract 10
	98-01 CDA UEC Easements Tract 10.pdf

	CDA_Map1.2 (1)



